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CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee meeting for July 12, 2005. For the record, we have in attendance this
afternoon, Councilmember, or excuse me, Committee Members Anderson, Molina,
Pontanilla, Tavares.
Excused from the meeting this afternoon is
Councilmembers Carroll; Johnson; Mateo; as well as the Vice-Chair of the Committee,
Mr. Hokama. Good afternoon, Members. We have one item on our agenda today, the
Cost of Government Commission's Report that you folks should have in your binders
under BF -11. It is dated March 31 st, 2005, and approved for transmittal by the Mayor on
April 9th , 2005.
ITEM NO. 11:

COST OF GOVERNMENT COMMISSION'S REPORT (C.c. No. 05-178)

CHAIR KANE: We do have with us this afternoon, the Chair of the Cost of Government
Commission, Mr. Douglas Halbert. Mr. Halbert, good afternoon, thank you for being
here.
MR. HALBERT: Good afternoon, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Members, we do also have in attendance various ...resource personnel from the
Administration. I wanna thank them for being here. There's a few items that we have,
Members, that. .. the Chair will first recognize public testimony. If there's anybody here
that would like to testify on this item this afternoon, please make yourself recognized.
Staff, do we have anybody signed up?
MS. SAKAMOTO: No, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you. And seeing that there's nobody here in the Chambers,
Members ... and I'd like to proceed with our agenda, is there any objections to closing
testimony for this afternoon's meeting?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. We'll go ahead and close it up. Thank you.
Members, directing your attention to BF -11, item number, we have the Cost of
Government Commission of the County of Maui, the Report of Findings and
Recommendations for Commission Year April 1st, 2004 to March 31 st, 2005. As you can
see, we have items that have been signed off as "issues of concern", and then we have
recommendations for each of the items. You will note, Members, that the Chair
did ... exclude a few items for various reasons. First, the management of the abandoned
vehicles. Very briefly, Members, my comments on that, the reason that we excluded it
was the ...the Commission's recommendation .. .is to conduct an independent audit of the
management of the abandoned vehicles program. The Public Works Committee has
already met on this item or similar item at its June 13 th , 2005 meeting and is fulfilling the
Council's oversight response ...responsibility of this issue. Also, if you, Members recall
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in our Budget discussions, we have allotted 300,000 dollars in the FY '06 Budget, which
is available for such an audit that has been requested or recommended by the Cost of
Government body. And since funding is available, the discussion as to whether the
Council should contract for an audit for an abandoned vehicles program, in the Chair's
opmlon, should be rendered in the Budget, uh, excuse me, the Public
Works ... Committee. We have already forwarded over via document transmission...the
part or this part of the Report over to the Committee to have a, yet another perspective of
the abandoned vehicle situation. And therefore, the Chair made the decision not to
include it in this afternoon's discussion. The other two items, Members, first the
County-owned and operated airline. Simply stated, there was no request by the
Administration to pursue this item in its FY '06 Budget. And so the Chair felt that. . .it
was not worthy of moving forward at this time, to talk about a County-owned air... and
operated airline. And finally, the driver, County driver education program. The
Commission's conclusion was that the current policy of being self-insured should
continue, and that establishing a mandatory drive safely education program for
employees would not be cost effective. So therefore, because of the time-sensitivity of
this meeting--we do have Members that are kinda strapped for time, as well as our Chair
of the Committee, for the Cost of Government Commission, excuse me--the Chair
wanted to make sure that we spent our time on the issues, that I think we can have a little
bit more information delved into and keep our discussion focused. Any questions or
comments before we proceed? The Chair's intent is to start from the first item that's
listed on Page 1 of 9 on the Report and then ask for some opening remarks from the Chair
of the Commission, and then also have any comments from Administration as to the
status of the items, and then open up for Q&A on each of the items. Any objections to
proceeding in that manner, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you very much. First item we have, Members, is the
administrative support to the Commission. The Chair will also note, before I open the
floor, to Mr. Halbert, is that the Chair is not aware of--within the 2006 proposed Budget
that we went through--any request specifically for additional support in this area. So I
wanted to get the comments from the... Chair of the Commission, and then maybe get
some follow-up from the ...the resource personnel from the Administration to follow-up
on this particular item. Mr. Halbert, comments?
MR. HALBERT: Mr. Chair, thank you very much for having me here. I am here today to
respond to inquiries. I believe the Report itself speaks for itself, along with the multitude
of minutes that we were, that we took during the course of our meetings. And I,
therefore, am not gonna belabor you with, with all of this material. Instead, I would like
to be responsive to any questions you may have in the way of clarification ofthe issues.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much, Mr. Halbert. Is there anybody in particular from the
Administration that will like to come forward and provide us any additional follow-up
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or. . .is Administration willing to just respond to questions from the, from the
Committee?
NOTE:

While seated in the audience, First Assistant to the Managing Director nodded agreement.

CHAIR KANE: . . . Thank you. And I'm looking at the Deputy from the ...Managing
Director's Office, and his nod is telling us he'll go ahead, they'll respond to any
questions. So, Members, at this time, any questions or comments with that, within the
administrative support to the Commission? It is a little ... concerning, and so ...hopefully
we can have some discussion on this. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, this Report was submitted in March... well,
March 31 st. And .. .it seems to me that the Administration should have had time
to ... read this Report and respond, and I think it would help all of us if they could give us
what their response is to what the Commission has presented to them, rather than us
having to dig out the information by asking questions. If we could get some kind of
response to ... to ... to what's been presented to them over the last several months, I think
it would save time rather than us having to ask questions to find out what they've done.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you for your comments. Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I agree with that approach... because they
also have the Report. And noting the date of the Report, it was after the Council received
the budget. So there was not, I don't think, sufficient time to include things in that
budget. However, there were several times when the Administration did ask us to include
in our version of the budget, or our budget certain items for the County. So I would be
very interested in approaching it in that manner--saying, you know, go right down the
list. .. what are the County's, Administration's responses to the ones that are listed
here ... and see where we're going, going from that point forward.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Any additional comments before I make a
request of the Administration?
... Okay, hearing none, at this point, I believe we have Ms. Wakamatsu. I don't know if
you're gonna be the one that comes forward to provide us with some updated comments
to the Report that was ... submitted to the Council on April 9th by the Mayor's Office.
When you folks do come up, please just state your name for the record and identify
yourself, and that way we can... keep, keep this meeting moving along. The Chair also
recognizes Committee Member Mateo to the meeting. Good afternoon, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon.
MS. WAKAMATSU: Good afternoon, Budget and Finance Committee Chair Kane and
Members. My name is Diane Wakamatsu, and I am an Executive Assistant to the Mayor
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who served as the administrative support person for the Cost of Government
Commission, of which you are now reviewing the annual Report .
. . . I would like to comment that on the first issue of concern regarding the administrative
support that was provided to the Commission during the last term of 2004-2005 ...there
has been a change in that the Administration now has a full-time Boards and
Commissions Secretary. So that person is specifically assigned to transcribing the
minutes and ... (cleared throat) . .. excuse me, posting the agendas. It. .. was a concern
during the past term, and Chair Halbert felt that more emphasis needed to be put forward
so that we could have this issue addressed and services being provided on a more
dedicated full-time basis.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Question? Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Ms. Wakamatsu, thank you for being here. Which
boards and commissions are staffed by this Secretary?
MS. WAKAMATSU:
Commission.

Specifically, the Cost of Government Commission and the Salary

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Just those two?
MS. WAKAMATSU: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Ms. Wakamatsu or to Mr. Halbert?
Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for being here, Ms. Wakamatsu.
. . . When do these two ...how often do these two boards meet?
MS. WAKAMATSU: They both meet on a monthly basis.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ...
. . . what else does this person do? You say a full-time person for boards and
commissions, I mean...two meetings a month really doesn't make up a full-time
position.
MS. WAKAMATSU: That person is also responsible for serving as the Secretary to the Senior
Executive Assistant. And they...together, work on the appointees or nominees that are

-5-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 12,2005

being recommended to the Council annually for all boards and commissions based on the
existing vacancies.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And it also says that they're ...
. . . the, the Cost of Government Commission is also asking for administrative personnel
to assist them in the investigative efforts of the Commission... and support the necessary
clerical activities on a timely basis. Has that been addressed?
NOTE:

Silence.

MS. WAKAMATSU: ... As far as the current Commission, I'm not sure exactly which issues
they are currently looking at that require research or investigation. Last year, it was not
available primarily because there was no person in that position to actually conduct those
tasks.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, were, will there be somebody now that can help
them? Because, you know, just by the nature of this Commission, you're gonna need
somebody. I, I can't imagine that these volunteers would be taking on the job of
investigating various problems that the Commission wants to address. So .. .is there
someone who would be available to assist them?
MS. WAKAMATSU: Yes, I believe the current administrative support person that is assigned to
service this Commission this year, along with the Boards and Commissions Secretary,
would make that determination as the items are discussed. And if those types of
assignments are required, I would believe that it would fall within their jurisdiction.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So are you saying that there's an administrative support
person now assigned to them that was not assigned to them in the past?
MS. WAKAMATSU: No, all I mean is that I am no longer the administrative staff person this
year. The Mayor has assigned another Executive Assistant to serve in that capacity.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And before I recognize ... any other questions, Mr. Halbert, if you
could please--how many meetings have you had since the submittal of this Report to this
body?
MR. HALBERT: Mr. Chair, the Report was filed on the 31 st of March, and I rotated off as the
Chairman of the Commission at that time. So I am no longer a Member of the Cost of
Government Commission.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
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MR. HALBERT: I am here .. .in back-up of our Report. The .. .I do not know who the current
Chair of the Cost of Government Commission is. Perhaps Ms. Wakamatsu knows.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Yeah, I'll go ahead and... refer the question to Ms. Wakamatsu.
Ms. Wakamatsu... you also mentioned that you're no longer staffing the Cost of
Government Commission. Can you tell us .. .if you do know, that, how many meetings
they've had since this Report was submitted? So, a May meeting, a June meeting, and
perhaps even a July meeting has been held?
MS. WAKAMATSU: That is correct. Because they do hold one regular meeting per month.
CHAIR KANE: Okay-MS. WAKAMATSU: And the current Chairperson ...
. . . is Diane Morgan.
She served as the Vice-Chairperson last year.
Commissioner Morgan is serving as the current Chairperson.

So

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions in this area? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. During the review process by the Cost of
Government Commission, whenever you've come out with a problem, a concern and a
recommendation ...
. . . does the Commission Report, the one that we have in front of us, is given to the
Mayor or to the Administration at the end of your term or as you go through each
issue ... and recommendation, is that given to the Administration to have the Departments
to follow-up on, on whatever, you know, concerns the Commission?
MR. HALBERT: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. The Commission would generally notify the
people involved in the question before us of our conclusion. And ifthere was something
that we felt really needed to be addressed, we would present that in the letter, in the way
of a letter to the Mayor. .. saying, here's something we feel needs to be addressed now.
And there were other issues that we felt were appropriate for our annual report. And
those were contained in the Report. As we get down through this, depending on where
the questions fall. . .I can pretty well identify situations where we asked the particular
department what is going on right now, what are you going to do about this ... type thing.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So there is feedback once the concern is presented to the
Administration--feedback to the Commission in regards to whatever action is taken to
correct the ... the issue that is at hand?
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t to the Report at all.
MR. HALBERT: I must admit that. .. we've had no feedback with respec
n came before
At the ... at our meetings ... all of those who represented the Administratio
But we did not
us, they provided us with information, and they were very responsive.
investigate and do
seek from them a commitment to anything, only a request that they
something. And we are, offtimes [sic}, awaiting anything getting done.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
, but I'll, I'll yield to the,
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any other questions? Chair has a couple
the Members. Mr. Mateo?
afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Mr. Halbert, good
MR. HALBERT: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: How were these issues derived at?
of the Commissioners at
MR. HALBERT: They were arrived ... at. .. by discussion among all
n to come and
our monthly meetings, and by calling certain members of the Administratio
testify on the issues that we were considering.
the County--like DMV
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So other issues that could affect
issues that the
operation, like Solid Waste, like Transportation, those were not
Commission will take a look at?
ted to us by either phone
MR. HALBERT: We actually took a look at issues that were presen
that they thought
calls from the public or for people who came and testified about issues
of the time we
we ought to be interested in. And we tried to pursue those on the basis
had available.
some of the issues that
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. It's just that some of the issues,
red to things we
the Commission deemed "issues" seems so miniscule in size as compa
complaints at. So I
normally read in the newspaper or things we've been bombarded with
was determined
don't know how to, you know, ask you how the priority listing of issues
your Report.
because some ofthe major issues affecting this County is not existent in
MR. HALBERT: I recognize that. Uh ...
Not necessarily an
. . . we tried to address issues where we thought it was a cost . . .issue.
administrative issue, but a cost issue.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
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MR. HALBERT: The Post Office is one of, the building is a cost issue. There are other issues
that we do not have on the agenda today that we thought were cost issues. And ...
. . . we did not see our role as a Commission to investigate the administrative procedures
of the County. And many of the issues we read in the newspaper are administrative
issues as opposed to cost issues.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further--oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Wakamatsu?
MS. WAKAMATSU: If-CHAIR KANE: Further comments?
MS. WAKAMATSU: If I may, Councilmember Mateo, make a comment? Early on when
Chair Halbert took office as the Commission Chair last year, he did try to solicit public
input by having publications printed in The Maui News and other newspapers and
publications throughout the County that kind of asked the public if they had any issues of
concern that they thought were within the authority of the Cost of Government
Commission, to please notify the Commission so that we could take that into
consideration as we deliberated on issues throughout the year.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions? Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Urn...this is for Administration in regards
to basically the .. .is there like a flowchart that. ..that you follow or the Commission
follow whenever there's an issue that is brought up? You know, from, from the
Commission it goes to Administration, from Administration to Department, and ifthere's
some feedback, feedback from the Department or Administration going back to the
Commission so that there's something like a guide that the, you know, Commission can
follow and ex ... expect feedback from either the Administration or the Departments
themselves until the...until the issue is either fixed or, or...you know, if money is
involved, then, then of course, you know, the budgeting would be an issue in, in regards
to that. But is there a flowchart that, you know ... comes back to the Commission, well,
starts at the Commission level and comes back to the Commission?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Halbert?
MR. HALBERT: Mr. Pontanilla, no there is not a flowchart. We would receive testimony, we
would ask questions, we would refer all our concerns ... and we would expect some
feedback. But we did not see our role, as a Commission, as responsible for
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micromanaging the County government. We saw our role to bring attention to things.
But we did not attempt to put stringent procedures in where people ended up having to
report within "X" number of days and so forth.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, any further questions ...on this item? And just a couple of final
questions. Ms. Wakamatsu, the ...the sentence or paragraph regarding the website
material. .. as far as not being maintained and information being outdated, can you give
us the status as of this time?
... If possible-MS. WAKAMATSU: Yes, Chair Kane, on that particular issue, the website is a generic website
that just has very general, basic information about the Commission. And it is true that it
has not been regularly maintained or updated. I am ... or, I did ask if this was an issue
that could be considered to be implemented. As of this date, I don't believe it has
changed. However, we are aware that this is an issue that perhaps needs to be attended to
so that more current information is available to the community through the website
access.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. My second question is regarding minutes. I don't know if Mister... uh,
Kushi, if, if you would be the appropriate person. Are we having issues with minutes
being finished in a timely manner, as far as for ...
. . . that, that's required of boards and commissions and bodies that function with public
minutes? Are we receiving them timely?
MR. KUSHI: To my knowledge, Mr. Chair, we are. We must. .. admit that at one point in time,
several years back, we weren't.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. KUSHI: But I believe the, the minutes for all boards and commissions are provided within
30 days .. .in draft form, subject to approval of the commission at its ... or board at, at its
next meeting.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, any final comments or questions in
this area? Mr. Halbert, any-MR. HALBERT: Yes-CHAIR KANE: --additional comments?
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MR. HALBERT: Mr. Chair, I, I commend the Mayor's Office for having identified the need to
add an administrative person to address this issue. As Mr. Kushi just said, all boards and
commission minutes are done within 30 days of the meeting. Well, one of the biggest
problems we encountered was there was a staff shortage during my... tenure,
and .. .30 days from our last meeting is the day of our next meeting. And so we were
offtimes [sic} in a situation where we were getting, 8, 10, 12 pages worth of minutes ... of
rather detailed information that it was being handed to us as we arrived at the meeting.
We had no opportunity to review the draft information or do anything such as that. Now
like I've said, I, I commend the Mayor's Office for having recognized that problem and
addressed it by designating a, an administrative staff person to make sure meetings, or
minutes are done on a timely basis. But the 30-day rule really was a problem for us.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
Ms. Anderson?

Thank you very much.

Any final questions or comments?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Halbert, I would suggest that if you get .. .{cleared
throat} . .. excuse me, minutes at a meeting ... {cleared throat}. .. excuse me. If you get
minutes at a meeting ... right prior to a meeting .. .I would just defer. .. accepting the
minutes 'til the next meeting so that you've got 30 days. There's no, there's no law that
says you have to accept and approve the minutes at the very next meeting. They just
have to be provided within 30 days. So I think that would be helpful, too. Maybe the
Members aren't aware ofthat--so that they have a chance to digest the minutes and see if
there's any changes they'd like to have made.
MR. HALBERT: Ms. Anderson, I. .. agree with you, and we did defer the minutes several times.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, good .. .{laughter} . ..
MR. HALBERT: .. .{laughter} . .. Because there were just no, no way. One, one of the
meetings was probably 30 pages of minutes ... and there was no practical way for us to
address the minutes ... {inaudible due to interruption}-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And are, are the minutes verbatim minutes?
MR. HALBERT: They are .. .generally, they are verbatim minutes, yes.
transcribed.

They are well

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Good. And then, Mr. Chair, I just have one other question
regarding the website. Who's now been assigned to update this website?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Wakamatsu?
... If you're prepared to respond?
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MS. WAKAMATSU: I am not prepared to respond to that question. I would not know who
would be the responsible administrative staff person to update that information at this
time. But I am willing to go back to inquire with the Mayor as far as who this person
would be.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I'd think it'd be very valuable to have a interactive
website that brings up the issues that the current Commission is .. .is addressing so the
public can really participate. Because this is really, you know, these are all members of
the public who volunteer to help improve government operation on behalf of the public.
And the website is a, is a way that the public can participate and... and make, really,
the...the issues that are of concern to this Commission, issues of concern to the whole
community. So I would, I'd hope that that would be addressed.
MS. WAKAMATSU: I can certainly take your recommendation back to the Mayor and express
that to him.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any final questions, comments on this item?
... Seeing none, Ms. Wakamatsu, final comment?
MS. WAKAMATSU: Chair Kane, I just would like to, for the record... explain that the minutes
are actually done on a summary basis and not a verbatim basis.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for that clarification. But apparently they're
being done well, so-MR. HALBERT: They were quite-CHAIR KANE: --they, they have-MR. HALBERT: --detailed.
CHAIR KANE: --good detaiL So that's good. Very good. Hearing no further questions in this
area, Ms. Wakamatsu, thank you for your presence this afternoon.
MS. WAKAMATSU: Thank you, Chair Kane and Members.
CHAIR KANE: Members, we're moving on the issue of evaluate ...the evaluation of County
leases. And I believe we have Mr. Dave Taylor here from the Managing Director's
Office, the First Deputy to the Managing Director; as well as Mr. Kalbert Young, our
Finance Director for the County ofMaui. Good afternoon, gentlemen.
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MR. TAYLOR: Good afternoon, Chair and-CHAIR KANE: Members-MR. TAYLOR: --Council Members.
CHAIR KANE: --on this particular item, the evaluation of County leases ... the Report tended
to ... focus their discussion on the Old Wailuku Post Office building. As you've ... as
you've read through, you'll note that the discussion revolved around the amount of
money that's being paid for the building and what the building is being used for.
Obviously, we've had some level of discussion in previous meetings as well, relevant to
the Post Office. And so ...the Chair believes that this is a good opportunity for us just to
get some update on what the status of the additional monies that was requested
for ... specific to the, I believe they talk about the mold issue. And so Mr. Taylor,
perhaps, as well as Mister...Mr. Young can provide us some, just some updated
comments relevant to ... the Report itself. Members, the Chair doesn't intend to go off,
you know, into ...you know, where we go from here and, you know, what's, are you
negotiating, all that stuff. We can save that for another time, but we'll just keep it to the
status of...based on what the Report's recommendation was through their .. .(end of
tape, start lB) . ..
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Basically, we discussed the Old Wailuku Post Office, I
think, in depth during the last budget hearings with this Committee. And we are moving
in the direction that the Council has recommended--that is to proceed with purchasing the
building and possibly look at building a new building on the site. So what we have done
since...the Administration has been here last discussing this in Budget is we are going
through consultant selection for two projects. One, to .. .look at. . .improvements to the
Old Wailuku Post Office, based on the mold that's there, what improvements are
necessary. And at the same time, we're looking for another consultant to move forward
on the campus-wide development plan--about where we're going to be, build the new
building and how the Wailuku Post Office would fit in. We're also pursuing the purchase
of that building, as was requested by Council. So we're pursuing all of these things, and
they will all. .. taken in total, resolve the issues of the Old Wailuku Post Office.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, before I recognize Mr. Young on the ...the more
general comments regarding the leasing of County property and comments that the
Commission made regarding the County charging fair-market rental rates for for-profit
businesses, if applicable, we'll go ahead and just wrap up any comments with respects to
Mr. Taylor's opening remarks. Ms. Anderson, followed by... go ahead, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. You know, the, the comments
here do point out that this issue has been, been addressed in previous Cost of Government
reports with no evidence of any action having been taken on the matter. Urn ...
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... can you ... can you tell us why there's, I mean, this has been brought forward several
times in the last several years--about the problem with the mold. And as I recall, at one
point, there was going to be an ... an investigation trying to determine if... the ...who's
responsible for the mold--Iooking at the lease and trying to figure out if it's the County's
responsibility as the lessee or if it's the owner of the property who's responsible.
Generally, the owner of the building is responsible for maintaining it in a usable state. So
has there been any action in that regard?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, Ms. Anderson. The lease agreement and the attached documentation was
reviewed by our Corporation Counsel. .. with input from Administration... officials who
understood the, the ... the actual structure and what was going on over there. And we did
come to the conclusion that. .. the landlord was living up to their end of the... of the
lease. And the building was essentially leased "as is", with knowledge that there were
certain systems that were not as ... as adequate as we had hoped. But there was really no
recourse to the owner for any of the condition of the existing building.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... Well, that sounds like a really pitiful lease agreement.
We, we agreed to lease long-term, a building that is .. .is deficient?
... Knowing full well that it's deficient?
MR. TAYLOR: One, one document I, I recall seeing, that I don't have in front of me, was a list
of known deficiencies that was made known to the County before the lease was entered
into. And that was .. .I, I'm not sure which form it was in, whether it was in a memo or,
or an attachment to the lease itself, but it basically made clear to the County that the
ventilation system wasn't working, that there was water leaking, and mold, and all sorts
of other things. And the County, it. . .it looks like the County, when the County entered
into this lease, did have full knowledge of the condition ofthe building.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So there was already mold present when the County signed
the lease?
MR. TAYLOR: I think it was in 1996, so I, I can't speak as an observer of that. But I believe
from the documentation that I saw, I do believe that the County knew there was mold
when the County signed the lease. I believe that's the case.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And there's been nothing done to mitigate the problem. So
it's just gotten worse?
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MR. TAYLOR: I'm not sure if it's gotten worse or it's remained the same. I know there was
a...there were some devices installed by the previous Managing Director. I think there
was some sort of ultraviolet devices that were removed before the current Managing
Director and I assumed our current positions. So I'm not exactly sure what those devices
were. But apparently, there was some attempt to remove some of the mold. What's
happened now is most of the documents in the basement, which are the most moldy area,
possibly the only moldy area...which are mostly controlled by the, documents that are
controlled by the Prosecutor's office, are in the process of being cleaned and moved out.
So things are being moved out ofthe moldy area.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ...there's no longer a threat of deterioration of records?
MR. TAYLOR: We don't believe so. But one of things we had intended to do is have a more
thorough investigation of the building for mold--to see if any of the mold in the
basement is making its way to where the current records are stored in the upper floors.
The last investigation that was done a couple of years ago indicated that it was unlikely
that mold from the basement was making its way up to the second floor where most of
the records are... are stored.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have you had an, an environmental contractor come in and
do a review for mitigation of mold?
MR. TAYLOR: That's exactly what we're, we've advertised for a consultant to do with FY '06
monies.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you're getting someone who is an expert in this field?
MR. TAYLOR: That is our intention.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions on this component ofthe issue?
. . . Hearing none, Mr. Young, I know that there was some discussion within the
Report ...talking about other County leases. Uh ...
. . . the County retained a landlord position. As noted in Commission minutes, some of
these leases were long-term land leases with minimal rents, and others were for
commercial property with below market lease rents, et cetera. Can you make some
comment as to the... comments made by the Commission?
MR. YOUNG: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good afternoon, Members. I'd like to respond by
providing a... some prepared research information that the Department is ...Department
of Finance has undertaken as a result of the Cost of Government Commission Report.
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And I'd like to respond today in three parts. The first part, pertaining to leases where the
County retained the landlord position.. .long-term land leases with minimum rents and
other commercial property with below market lease rents. The Department of Finance
has done some research to find out that. ..the vast majority of long-term land leases are
limited to the Kula Ag Park that is currently, essentially managed by the Office of
Economic Development. And Ms. Joanne Inamasu from the Office of Economic
Development, serving as its current Coordinator, is present this afternoon. More
specifically, they are actually managed by the Agricultural Specialist,
Mr. Kenneth Yamamura. An evaluation of these leases reflect that ...
. . . that these rents... are not or have not been assessed to market value previously;
they've essentially remained unchanged over time; and most of the leases have a
schedule as to when they can be reassessed and have the rent increased. They are not
necessarily done annually. Mr. Yamamura has detennined that he has started to go
through the leases. And some of the lots are currently being resurveyed as to the actual
usable area, and other leases are being amended for other issues. All together, he is
currently getting appraisals and intends, in the future, to continue to get appraisals as
these leases are renegotiated or renewed .
. . . The second point is where the County should charge fair-market rental rates for all
land and buildings occupied by, quote, for-profit businesses. Again, an evaluation of
all .. .leases that fit under this ...this, this criteria reveals that primarily the Housing and
Human Concerns Department has, essentially, a lot of long-tenn leases with annual rents
of only a dollar. This is similar to what any other departments may have. They are all to
nonprofit grant-funded entities. Similarly the Parks Department has a few leases that are
to nonprofit grant-funded organizations for a dollar. And the Finance Department
has .....whatever leases the Finance Department controls are essentially all concession
agreements. And concession agreements have had to go through the bid process. And
that process has detennined the rent value. Lastly, the Commission had recommended
that the County implement a procedure that requires all lease documents be audited on a
regular and timely basis to ensure lease compliance. Currently, all departments are sent
their lease inventory twice a year by the Department of Finance and asked to review for
accuracy and to provide any documents to correctly reflect their leases. This Fiscal Year
2006, the Finance Department, with the foresight of the County Council, has been
granted a position for an Asset Property Manager. And the, this type of operation is
specifically what the Department of Finance hopes to ...to achieve with this position.
And that is to insure lease compliance, as well as compliance with insurance liability,
property usage, rents, et cetera. On this matter, I'd like to conclude by saying that I
appreciate the, the work of Mr. Halbert. The Department of Finance has been always
open to hearing from the Commission and I hope that Mr. Halbert feels that the
Department has always been cooperative and taking their suggestions and reviewing.
Although we can't implement all of their suggestions, everyone should know that we
make a conscious effort to consider and review them accordingly. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE:
Thank you, Mr. Young.
Members,
good...comprehensive ...response there. Mr. Molina?

any questions.

-Pretty

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good afternoon, Mr. Young. On the
subject of the leases, and in terms of market price, is there anything that prohibits us
from ...proposing to, from pro ... for profit. ..profit entities--getting messed up on that
word--to charge them market rates? I mean, or is that a, or is that just Administrative
policy not to do so? I'm just asking that in response to the concerns expressed by the
Cost of Government Commission.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Molina. As far as I know, there is nothing in the Code that
prohibits us from charging market rents. In fact, this ...the comments and suggestions of
the Commission are well taken because the Department of Finance has always
encouraged departments--especially when they lease... commercial property or property
that will be used for commercial purposes, whether they be non, for nonprofit, to a
nonprofit or a for-profit entity, that some appraisal or some assessment be done to gamer
what is a fair-market price had this property been offered to the private sector. And even
if it's to a nonprofit organization and if we are leasing it for a dollar a year or anything
below the market rent or whatever that appraised market rent be, that that amount should
be reflected as... as essentially a grant. It is the position of the Department of Finance
that we encourage all departments to reflect fair market rental or in some way to account
for what should be a fair market rent of... County property.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I think that's a... good path you're taking 'cause, you know,
time has changed. The true dollar, its value now has just expanded over time. I had one
more question, Chair, but. .. you know what, I'll pass for now 'til I can get my thoughts
collected on this one. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. For those lands that we lease for a
dollar a year, who does the maintaining of the property and the building itself or
buildings itselves [sic]?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.. .it, it would depend on which property that is in question.
It's usually written in, into the grant--that either... on some properties, like with the Parks
Department for instance, they have arrangements that either the Parks Department or
some other grantee will maintain the property. And in other instances, the grantee
themselves of that said property maintains it. So it depends. For the most part, I would
say by and large it would be expected that the grantee maintains the property.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, thank you. It is also all of
these .. .lands or buildings that are granted under fair market value to a nonprofit. .. come
to the Council for approval. So we have been seeing these grant applications for
buildings andlor land. And I think the... you know, you mentioned the Kula Ag Park,
which is below market value, but was, was there some other entity that's renting below
market value from the County that's a for-profit or not a nonprofit?
MR. YOUNG: ... Uh...based on our research, we have not found any, anything substantial that
came to mind or that we found-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. YOUNG: --the Kula Ag Park, I mentioned today only because it was the most prevalent-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: --in that, in the situation that the Commission had identified.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And I, and I think you have to look at all of the ones that are
supposedly the non nonprofit ones. Because it doesn't make sense for us to charge fair
market value and then increase their grant in order for them to be on the place. It's like
we're just, you know, changing pockets .. . (laughter) . .. You know, left pocket to right
pocket. The Kula Ag Park issue is one that needs more digging into than just what
appears on the surface because the whole idea behind the ag parks in our County was to
provide for reasonable promotion of agriculture for the small farmer. They also get
totally raw land. All improvements that are made on those properties stay with the
property when they leave. So it becomes their, whatever they put in there, they don't get
to take with them, or there are conditions. And I guess the only reason I know this kind
of backwards and forwards is 'cause I worked on it for three years with the Kula Ag Park
Committee, redoing that ordinance having to do with the Kula Ag Park, which had not
been changed since 1973 or '74. So I know that Mister...Yamamura has been inquiring
as to what some of the history is on the Ag Park. And I. . .I have some information
that. . .I'll just give him the entire box and he can go ... (laughter) . .. go through it. But
we, you know, when we look at things that are cost items like this, each one, I think, has
a, a unique kind of circumstance. And as we look at ways to increase revenues or
whatever, you know, let's make sure we're not increasing in one place and then
decreasing in another so that we end up, you know, paying Peter to ...robbing Peter to
pay Paul so to speak. Or just switching--like I said, I think switching pockets is a better
analogy. So, thank you for the work that you folks have done in this area. Thank you.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina?

- 18 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 12,2005

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chainnan, that other question entered
my mind now. First of all, I think this is a good... direction you're taking, Mr. Young, in
terms of, you know, asking all departments to consider market rates out there. Because
when the County goes out to lease land from private entities, private entities are not shy
about charging the County market rates.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: .. .(laughter} ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But my question was in regards to a comment made by he
Commission that asked, I guess, your Department and I guess others to monitor these
various leases. Do you have the adequate staffing to do so on a more regular basis of
evaluating these leases that are currently out there?
MR. YOUNG: Shortly, Mr. Molina, no, we do not. And that is part of the problem that the
Commission has so rightly identified as the reason we have, the County has so much
issues and problems with leases. There is no one in the County that really has the skill
sets or the dedicated time to manage the hundreds of leases and grants that the County
enters every year, no to ensure that the grantees or the lessees or the County meets full
compliance or meets all the expectations of the, of the contracts. But with the Counci1' s
help in approving the Asset Manager position in FY '06, we hope that that will be the
first step to build up that capacity. If you may recall when, when I appeared before you
folks during the Budget and asking for this position, this was specifically the type of
scope that I had envisioned that this person could do. I don't think it will resolve all of
the issues regarding management of the leases, but I think it will go a long way. So I
thank you for approving this position for the Department of Finance and the County.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. A step in the right direction. Okay. Any further questions or
comments in this area before we move on?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainnan?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Just as a follow-up because of the Commission's .. .I
guess ... notice that they're really not getting a flow of response from the Report that they
had submitted to the Administration. Your prepared statement and Mr. Taylor's
comments, those will be written and provided to the Commission itself for review as
well?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, they can be. Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: ... So, Mr. Halbert, the ... one of your issue, one of your
concerns was that there has been no response in your inquiries. So you just heard our
Finance Director say that they, their response could be made available. Is "could be
made available" adequate?
MR. HALBERT: Well, feedback is one of the things that is most rewarding to the Commission.
And I think that it would be very appropriate for that feedback to be directed to the
current Commission at least. Not being on the Commission any longer. .. you know, I'm
pleased to know that something is being done. But I was not aware of such before.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Young. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, sounds like we could always pass a little ordinance that,
requiring a response to the report that's forwarded back to the sitting ... sitting body so
they can have a level of continuity on the issues that were taken up previously. I mean,
that's something that we could discuss. And so Chair will look into that and .. .it may
affect the ... the recommendation. As you probably would assume, I would recommend
filing unless you wanted something, some component of this Report forwarded to any
relevant Committee. But we could always defer, keep this in Committee and allow it, for
us to have some communication back and forth and create some proposed legislation for
us to tighten it up and get more response out of the Commission... Commission's work.
Ms. Anderson, final comments?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I, you know ... (sigh) . .. common sense. If you're
gonna have a commission like this, common sense says you have to respond to their
concerns, otherwise .. .it's a waste of everybody's time. And I think it's pretty sad that
we would have to pass an ordinance, Mr. Chairman, to get the Administration to respond
to the concerns of this Commission. So, you know, I know there's a Secretary assigned,
but I'm sure that there's somebody else assigned from the Administration as oversight for
this Commission. And it, in my opinion, it's their job to make sure that the
Administration responds to the inquiries and the requests of this Commission.
And... and I hope that happens--that we don't need to ... spend time and money to pass
an ordinance to require them to do that.
... Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. I don't think this body will. .. would take much time, personally,
Ms. Anderson .. .{laughter} . .. I think we can get some language, a few sentences, and
just, I think we can just, you know, complete the, complete the work of the Commission
by having just some, some required follow-up. And that way, nobody ...nobody, we
don't have to depend on what, one administration or another. .. have an, a level of
response being different. Okay, Members, we're moving on. Mr. Taylor. .. you can sit
with us since the information provided on the next item ... came out of your Office as
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well. Members, the small tools and portable equipment accountability policies.
Mr. Taylor... and before, and before I recognize you .. .! believe...we'll call
back. .. we'll call back Mr. Young a little later. Thank you, Mr. Young. Mr. Taylor?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The issue of concern in the Report was the lack of a
small tools and portable equipment. ..policy covering the whole County. This has been
looked at, we were aware that this came up, we .. .in the Commission. And it's important
to look at small tools in the realm of assets as a whole. Assets include things we buy, that
we own, that we take care of, that we maintain, that we use. Large assets are things like
major facilities, then we have major equipment, and we go down the line until we get to
small tools. When we look at small tools, we have dozens and dozens of different
departments and op, operating groups scattered throughout the County that use small
tools. They're in baseyards, in trucks, workshops. They're everywhere. And the
Department of Management is looking at asset management as a whole by focusing on
the priorities. We're starting with the facilities and major equipment--seeing that there
are policies and procedures for replacement and maintenance of these major facilities,
major equipment. And we're starting with that as our priority. Because of that,
management of small tools and other small types of assets like that is essentially the, the
responsibility of field supervisors in the various departments. That being said, there are
various disciplinary policies that the County has which cover theft and misuse of County
property. So from one sense, there already is a small tool policy from the sense that there
are a number of disciplinary policies where if you steal things, if you damage things
knowingly, you are held responsible. So a County-wide small tools policy.. .if the
intention of this is to say that every morning somebody will get a checklist and check off
which tool they're taking in their truck and things like that, it's really just too small to
have the Department of Management come up with an overall policy that covers all the
different operating groups, which have very different needs, to where it would have any
real meaning. So any County-wide small tools policy of that type of venture would
really be too vague to have much meaning. So that is why the Department of
Management and the Administration are focusing on large asset management, and
essentially leaving small items like this to the supervisors to deal with their small assets
as, as they're trained to do.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Taylor. And for the record, we do have Mr. John Buck, our
Deputy Director for the Parks and Recreation, who also provided information to this, to
this component of the Report. Any addition comments, Mr. Buck?
MR. BUCK: Yes, Mr. Chair. And I thank the Commission for bringing this issue up to, you
know, for us to take a look at it. Last few years, our Department has been looking at
many, many, many issues and trying to become more accountable for these issues.
In.. .in regards to small tools policies ...we have, starting to put together some guidelines
for all of our Divisions to, to ...have better controls. And, and these areas are including
tools being locked up in... especially the larger ticket items like weedeaters and things
like that--being locked up into storage areas that have restricted key codes were
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somebody who has a key cannot go down to, say, one of the hardware stores and make
keys. But restrict codes, limit the number of keys that are issued for the particular ...
· .. equipment room so we have better controls who has that. Also, we are working with
our supervisors right now, is that when they do issue tools, that the employees are... sign
out for them and return them at the each, in the... end of the day. And also in
their...regular evaluations ...how, they'll be evaluated as part of work performance on
how they take care of all County property--which would include the small tools. In
regards to loss ...you know, if there is a loss, especially anything more than a hundred
dollars or so, we will do an investigation. And it, we're going as far as now as filling up
police reports and doing internal investigation. And if we find the employee negligent in
regards to it being lost, that employee will be reprimanded based on the various
guidelines through DPS and the Bargaining Units. Or ...
· . . Or it would be based on the evaluations. Smaller less numbered tools will be,
basically, handled in-house--either the employee would replace it if they still want
their ...
· .. want the tool, or they will be reprimanded for losing the tool if they don't, wish not to
replace it, the smaller tool like a screwdriver or something like that. But we are starting
to establish guidelines. It's not policy right now. We're still working on it, and that's the
direction that we're going. I say "guidelines" because we, if it becomes a "policy", then
we have to have input from the Bargaining Units to sign off on it.
CHAIR KANE: Continue.
MR. TAYLOR: If I may, Mr. Chair? And we've been working with the Parks Department as
they seem to be further along than any of the other departments and divisions. If the
Parks, or when the Parks Department gets this guideline into a point where it is a policy,
that can be used as a template for the other departments and divisions, as maybe a starting
point for their specific needs. So we do support having all the departments and divisions
having small tools policies. And, again, we plan as the Department of Management to, to
use, to kind of advocate the sharing of this sort of information to help people develop
their own, rather than trying to have one ...policy that we try to make work for
everybody.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares, followed by Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Do you have a definition of what a small tool is?
I mean, I heard Mr. Buck mention screwdriver, and you've got screwdrivers of all kinds
of ranges. Is there a dollar amount?
MR. BUCK: We're looking at anything for disciplinary purposes and replacement, anything
under a 100 dollars, over 100 dollars. But the small tool is defined by the County and it
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goes on inventory as anything... does not go on the inventory if it's anything less than
700 dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Less than 700 dollars-MR. BUCK: That's-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --not going at, on their inventory?
MR. BUCK: Does not go on inventory, anything under 700 dollars--unless that's just recently
changed. But it used to be 500. Then a few years ago it went up to 700.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So do you have a low end as to what you're using as your
guideline for a small tool?
MR. BUCK: We're still kind of working on it. I'm basing, I'm just getting the input from our
Division Heads. We're looking like 100 dollars is, is the cut-off point, you know, for the
smaller items. If it's something that they need everyday, they'll be issued and then, you
know, they will have to report to the supervisor if it's missing. Anything over
100 dollars, when we get into weedeaters and stuff, they would have to check out from
their supervisor. And those will be checked in and out. And if it does end up missing,
then of course, for example, weedeaters or...blowers, we would file a police report as
part of the, the item being missing. And it's either, ifit's theft...we will investigate that
to the fullest. And we have terminated employees in the past for that, in the last few
years. If it's neglect on the employee's, then that'd be, it comes more of a performance
reprimand or even written or.. .if there's real serious, then we could ... (end aftape, start
2A) . .. we have to go through progressive discipline.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. I have one question for Mr. Halbert
and one for Administration. Mr. Halbert, you know we dealt with this issue before and I
see it's come up to the Commission again. What was the impetus or the reason for it
again? Is it because you're getting concerns expressed from the community about the
County having a, a high amount of... of small tools being lost or stolen?
MR. HALBERT: Actually, this, this subject for discussion came up before the Commission
because of one of the Commission members who felt that. .. uh...his personal
observations were that the County had little or nothing in the way of documented rules
and regulations relating to the control of the cost of small equipment. And at the time, I
believe, the number was 700 dollars that they were talking about. Things less than
700 dollars... there is little or no ...rules, regulations, or requirements ...relating to the
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control of those. And it doesn't take long for ... a few 700 dollar items or 600 items to
start adding up to a fairly hefty expense on the part of the taxpayers. We felt something
needed to be done. But it came from one ofthe Commission members.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Question now for, I guess, either Mr. Buck or
Mr. Taylor. I guess maybe we'll start with Mr. Buck since you seem to be the farthest
along in terms of coming up with a policy. Over the last several years have, has there
been a decrease in the amount of lost or stolen equipment from, say for example, your
Department?
MR. BUCK: ... We're hoping that it has decreased. I guess because we're starting to tighten it
up a little bit, there has been more reports of equipment missing because either myself or
the Director, Glenn Correa, will actually look at all the... all purchase orders that go, the
requisitions that go through and we will, you know, in the last six months we've pulled
out a number of requisitions and have questioned either the supervisor or division head
why those particular tools were being purchased and what, for what reason. Um...we
are starting to set some--overall in the Department, we're starting to set
some...procedures for accountability on...the whole Department as far as the
maintenance. And hopefully with the new position that we thank you for ...the
maintenance under the record support services, that that'll be one of the areas that that
person could concentrate--is to help finalize these guidelines and also some
other.. .issues that we, we know, we're aware of and we're trying to work on it right
now.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So you're taking the more stricter stance with regards with
inventory of all the equipment and ...
MR. BUCK: Yeah, and I, where we're starting right now is, is .. .is, first of all is the type of
locks we put on some of our storage facilities. You know, in the past, it was regular key
and you could go down to any of the hardware stores or Sears and be able to duplicate the
key if you got a hold ofthe key. So now we're using restricted codes, which there's only
one person who has...you know, who has those codes. And those keys are kept in there
locked, safe, and they are very stringent about. .. as far as who could... duplicate those
keys. And, you know, we've had a certain... as soon as we know we have
something... disappear, we're doing an investigation right now. And... and then the
supervisor is told at that time to re, change the lock again and to restrict it to only, only
two keys. And not every employee has a key to that storage room. So we can, we're
starting to restrict the number of people who have keys to certain storage rooms so when
something does disappear, then we can concentrate more on our investigation towards
why that disappeared and, again, see there's gonna be a police report for theft or there'll
be a performance evaluation reprimand ... a situation.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, as a trailblazing department, I hope other
departments can follow suit. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo, followed by Mister...Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chainnan, thank you. And just continuing on with the line of
questioning that Mr. Molina just got through with. Do we actually have an idea of what
the loss to the County is?
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Mateo, I don't know that we have an idea of the loss because that would
have ...necessitated having an inventory from years and years back. But I can tell you
that just to put this into perspective, during one fiscal year, we spent roughly
87,000 dollars on small tools County-wide. That's all the departments, all the divisions.
So ...that's really the only hard number we're able to come up with. We, we obviously
don't know what was stolen because tools have been being acquired over the years. We
don't really know how, what the baseline was.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And, and then, another, another question is--I guess just
looking through the Report, it, it's specific in nature by telling us that. ..that the Mayor
had responded June 25 th , 2004 and the recommendation was received and that the
Departments of Finance and Personnel Services would develop and promulgate an
effective policy. So apparently that has been shifted to the...the Department of Parks to
develop this policy for...the Administration?
MR. TAYLOR: Again...the Parks Department is developing a policy that works for the
Department of Parks. Each working group--whether it's Public Works Wastewater or
Solid Waste or Highways, Police, whoever is using small tools--it's their field personnel
that are responsible for their small tools. Frankly, this ...this response is, this
June 25 th, 2004 response, we tried to find it, and it didn't say here whether it was a verbal
or written. And we were unable to locate this--'cause I tried to find this to find exactly
what was stated, and I, I'm not really sure exactly what the Mayor did state because I was
unable to ... to locate-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And-MR. TAYLOR: --a record of this.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And lastly, of the, that 80,000 dollars to the replace the lost
tools, any police reports filed?
MR. TAYLOR: I'm sorry. I didn't mean to say that that 87,000 dollars was necessarily to
replace lost tools. That is how much we spent in roughly-COUNCILMEMBERMATEO: .. . {inaudible} ...
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MR. TAYLOR: --one year on small tools. That could have been small tools for new uses,
new ... new employees, things like that. Could have been for tools that worn out.
Possibly none of those were stolen. So I just wanted to put it in a context of a roughly
400-million-dollar-a-year County budget, we are spending 86, 87 thousand dollars a year
on small tools which is distributed very widely. So just to give everyone a sense of how
small a dollar amount, when you get down to the actual working group, the actual
baseyard ...how relatively small this is for each working group. And I just wanted to
make sure the Council Members had a, kind of a... an idea of ... (inaudible due to
interruption)-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No, I, I appreciate the comments. And remember, that's not
your money, and it's not my money. It's taxpayers money. And 87,000 dollars, sir, is a
good amount of money that taxpayers are contributing for small tool replacements,
et cetera. So I appreciate your comment, and I hope you will ... appreciate mine. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Mr. Pontanilla, followed by Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Maybe Mr. Taylor can answer this
question in regards to small tools. Mr. Taylor, do you know how we budget small tools
for each of the department or. .. or maybe Parks can tell us if there is a line item that
indicates small tool purchases.
MR. BUCK: Yeah, it's under line item 6052, I believe. It's a, it's a line item for small tools.
And each of the ... regards to our, in our Department, each of the programs, like Districts
or the Programs will usually allocate small tools. A lot of it is just basically replacement
'cause they get broken or. .. or maybe you're working on something, you lay it
down ... and then you tum around to do something else, you come back and the tool is
missing. You know, especially real small stuff. In answer to Councilmember Mateo's
office is, yeah, we ...we have filed some police reports ...we're, we, we, when something
disappears. And again, this is something we've been trying to do over the years. It's just
that we're getting more diligent in regards to investigations and ...not only personnel, but
issues like that, that where we, we ... that there, the supervisor now are required to fill out
incident report when something's missing.
So .. .1 don't know what the other
departments are doing, but we're trying to be a little more diligent about it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: ... In, in regards to inventory, I guess the Department
inventoried their tools once a year? Or do we do it at all? Or is there a policy of... on
inventory?
MR. BUCK: Um ... as far as, well, some of the equipment, like personnel protective equipment,
we, we do that probably on a, an... a quarterly audit to be sure that those type of personal
equipment and tools are available to the employees. Um ... the larger small tools--which
is under 700 dollars, but more in the 100 dollars ... most of the work sites will have an
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inventory of what's inside their storeroom. And you know, we've been experiencing
some of the items missing and disappearing, so we're getting a little bit more strict as far
as who has access to the storage rooms. As far as the really smaller items, the stuff you
need to tighten up or whatever...most of the Districts--and we're not, you know ... and
I'll admit that we're not really consistent at it, but we're trying to be. Most Districts will,
the... supervisors will probably do an annual check just to be sure that they have the tools
and, or if there's, yeah, they've been instructed to also--again, we're not doing it
consistently, but we're trying to, is that if something's missing, that they are supposed to
report it. And then we go from there, how we're gonna handle the situation. And like we
said, we're still developing the guidelines. We haven't really true and tested it, but we're
trying to finalize it and then, you know, later down the road we can probably make it
available.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, as, as you work through your guidelines, maybe
you can touch bases with some of the utility companies over here--like Maui Electric, the
phone company, HC&S. I, I think they have very, very good guidelines in regards to
tools. Last question that I have is, is in regards to purchasing of tools less than
700 dollars. Um... and who authorize or, you know, what is the authorization level for
purchases under 700?
NOTE:

Silence.

MR. BUCK: ... The, if it's done through a purchase...the .. .if it's done through a purchase
order, it goes from the person making the requisition, it's usually the... somebody in the
Program. Then it goes to the Division Head. And then we, and then either... again,
myself or the Director will sign off on, on the items. Where we're having some problems
as far as we find out later is using, in case something comes up and someone needs a tool
real fast, is usually through the direct payment method--where they go down and pick up
the tool and then they do the invoicing later and we don't find out about that 'til later.
We are working on that to strict, to ...make it more strict for somebody, just use the
direct payment for certain tools. Just to have better controls over what's going on in the
Department.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, you know, and that's very good. One of the
things that, you know, we need to be mind of is, you know, that not only the supervisor is
aware of...well, the supervisor is the, actually the focal point for purchasing of tools for
the men below him. And you know, the Department Head and then the, you know,
probably yourself and Glenn... you know, should also be mindful of that type of
purchases so that it doesn't get out of hand, so there's some controls.
MR. BUCK: Yeah, I, I appreciate your comments and I'll, and I'll, when we start finalizing our
guidelines, I'll, I'll maybe...1'11 work with you as far as getting some contact names.
But I also, but I also gotta remember that, you know, it. .. our, our intention is what's the
best for the taxpayer--and it's getting the job done. And it's either purchase a new tool or
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spend a lot of time looking around to borrow one. And... and it, sometimes that's the
decision that we, has to be made--what's the most cost-effective, do I go down pick up a,
you know, something, a tool that. .. maybe is only like, you know, 10 or 15 dollars versus
do I waste 30 or 40 dollars in labor where it's can be done, in the actual performance,
work trying to find, having to find who has that same tool or...borrowing it or whatever.
So we have to look at. ..you know, we don't, sometimes I don't like to buy tools because
I. ..but at the same time, if I need to get the work done and what's the most
cost-effective. It's either purchase it. . .it's probably purchase it, sometimes, versus what
I would waste having a guy looking for a tool.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, I, I agree with you. And once we get to
mechanization, hopefully we can mechanize the tools themselves so that, you know,
when we do inventory, not only.. .inventory of the department, but whenever you need a
piece of equipment, at least you know what department to go to for that piece of
equipment. So, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: And we will be calling a recess after Ms. Anderson's question-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --so ... we can get a break.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
You know, Mr. Chairman, I find this really
disturbing...that there's no, there's no way to determine how much loss ... from theft or
loss ...you know, carelessness.
And, and there's no, no inventory policy
County-wide...to actually put an inventory number on an item claiming it to be County
property unless it's over 700 dollars. Is that, is that County-wide or is that just the Parks
Department, for the 700 dollar limit?
MR. TAYLOR: Ms. Anderson, that is County-wide.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: .. . (sigh) . .. And so why did you raise the limit from 500
to 700?
NOTE:

Silence.
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MR. TAYLOR: ... I, I don't know the answer to that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, it seems to me that anything over a hundred
dollars should have an inventory tag on it, should be identified on a list, and once a year
somebody goes in and does inventory. And that way, you know how much you've lost
every year.
· .. So we know, when we're allocating money for the budget. .. that these are
replacement costs for things that have been lost or stolen. You know, we gotta keep track
of these things. And 700 dollars is an awful. .. generous limit. I know here for Council
Services and, and the Council, we tag everything. Our chairs that are, don't even cost
100 dollars, we put an inventory tag on. And, and somebody comes and, and checks to
make sure that that inventory is still here. We're spending taxpayer dollars, and we
should keep track of how we spend that money and the, and the, and the equipment that
we buy with that money belongs to the public and we should not be careless about
keeping track of it. And like you said, you don't know how much of that 87,000 dollars a
year--at least this one year that you're looking at--how much of that is replacement for
things lost or stolen. And if you don't have an inventory, there's no way of knowing. I, I
just find it very careless. And I would hope that there would be a County-wide policy
developed. How many years have we been here? And as we grow and grow, more and
more money is being spent on these kind of things. Parks Department, you're just
one ... you know, you're just one Department. Public Works--I'm sure there's
· . .(sigh) . .. lots of money being spent in Public Works for small tools, especially if
you're only counting things over 700 dollars. It, it just seems irresponsible to me that we
don't keep track of things. Urn ...
· . . I mean, maybe 100 dollars is ... (sigh). . . is too picky, but.. .I think 100 would
exclude screwdrivers and hammers and all those kind of small things, but anything over
that, I think it's irresponsible not to inventory, tag it, and put it on a list so that we know
at the end of the year where we stand and what kind of a problem we do have. And, and
to let each department do it, you know, independently, means that, you know, when they
get around to it. And this, I'm sure, cannot be a top priority. So maybe it never gets
around to it.
· . . So I don't have any questions.
Mr. Chairman.

Those are just my comments.

CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any additional questions or comments?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: ... (inaudible) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Mr. Pontanilla?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And this is for Mr. Halbert. When, when you folks
reviewed... or the concern that came up in regards to small tools ...by one of your
Commission members...was the talk about, did any discussion... done on having a one
policy for the County in regards to small tools?
MR. HALBERT: That was our recommendation, Mr. Pontanilla, to the Mayor's Office. And
I'm surprised that the Mayor's letter can't be found. If.. .I think I can provide a copy of
it.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Great.
MR. HALBERT: It's in my files which I turned over to Diane Wakamatsu at the end of my
term. And she's got them upstairs. But I assure you that the letter from the Mayor
clearly stated that we will proceed to move down toward, down the trail toward getting a
County-wide uniform policy.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And hopefully we can find that and ...Members, without objection,
the Chair will have a letter sent up to ask for that letter and have it attached to this
particular item number. Members, we're gonna call for a recess. Time now is 2:54.
We'll recess until 3:05. This Committee stands in recess .. . (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

2:54 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:10 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel). .. Okay, Members, we'd like to reconvene. This is the
July lzt\ 2005 Budget and Finance Committee. We are discussing the Cost of
Government Commission's annual report, which was submit to this body, oh, around
April of this year. Members, we're wrapping up our discussion on the small tools and
portable equipment accountability policies. Members, the Chair will note that a little bit
of research showed us that this issue was brought up at the June 17th, 2003 Budget and
Finance Committee meeting on the Cost of Government Commission Report. The exact
same issue with the exact same discussion. Okay? So ...what we've discussed, and
we've spent a lot of time, but I think it's .. .it's important that we note... especially in
light of the comments by Mr. Halbert, as well as Staff believes that we also already have
a copy of that letter written by the Mayor that. .. the Departments of Finance and
Personnel Service will develop and promulgate an effective policy. So ...we're hoping to
see something happen there. Anyway, any final questions or comments before we move
on? We'd like to move on to the next ite:m, which is the Maui County Charter,
Chapter 15 . We do have with us this afternoon, Deputy Corporation Counsel,
Mr. Ed Kushi Jr. Mr. Kushi, you wanna make any comments in this area? I know there
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was a... some conclusions drawn with all the research that was done. If you can provide
us with a... a summary? Thank you.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, Mr. Chair, and subject to, you know, Mr. Halbert's comments .. .I, I got in
this issue halfway. My colleague, Traci Villarosa, initially took the ball on this one.
Apparently, what had happened was this Commission first looked at the, there was an
issue or a concern about staggered terms--meaning that they, they favored a position of
the Commission whereby at least two-thirds or six members of the nine-member
Commission would have at least one year experience in doing these reports. And they
proposed, they asked our Office to look at a possible Charter revision to make the
appointments ...or the terms of the Commissioners consistent with that objective. We
looked at, we looked into it and we did some further research as to the establishment of
the Cost of Government Commission and we found ... found that the in the history.. .in
which this Commission was established, we found that it was on purpose that the
Commission appointment, the terms of the Commission members be staggered. But at
the same time, we also found that this Commission is, in essence ... convenes once every
two years and does a report to this body and the Mayor and then ...dissolves, in essence
doesn't do anything until its next report. And their duties are basically biennial, which
means once every two years. Now that kind of...conflicts with the ... standing Charter
provision that the Commissioners be appointed, some, four of 'em be appointed for two
years, and five of 'em be appointed for one years, one year. So that being the case, the
current Commission is still wrestling as to what, when shall they start and when shall
they finish, and when shall they submit their next report. But for this purpose.. .I guess,
cut to the chase, the issue was tabled. And they'll be no request for a Charter amendment
from the previous Commission.
CHAIR KANE: Can you provide clarification before I recognize any of the Members or the
Chair ofthe, the former Chair. The conflict is between the current Charter and what?
. . . Can, can you, can you be more specific in describing what the conflict is? I mean, I
hear you, it's biennial, and I'm hearing you that four for two years, five for one year. Is
there one that takes precedent over the other, and therefore the other side that doesn't take
precedent is something that needs to be changed or needs to be some ... some work done
to get that corrected, to make it consistent? Mr. Kushi?
MR. KUSHI: Well, let, let me try again. And, Doug, help me if you can. Urn...the Charter
simply states that the Council, the Mayor with the approval of the Council shall
biennially appoint a Cost of Government Commission, a Cost of Government
Commission consisting of nine members. And it goes on, one of the duties of the
Commission shall be: submit a report of its findings and recommendations to the Mayor
and the Council not later than 11 months after its appointment. Okay? Eleven months
after its appointment. The question is, what appointment?
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· .. And the Charter goes on to say that the ...terms of the Commission members, the
nine of 'em shall be ... staggered terms of two years for four of them... and the balance of
the five for one-year terms. So at anyone point in time ...well, anyone point in time,
there'll be nine Commission members. Then the question became, obviously, is that after
they file their... biennial report, what are they gonna do? When does the next term start?
Should they, all of the Commissioners resign? Or by law are they, they ... disposed of
and then the Council and the Mayor appoints another one, another Commission, brand
new nine members? But yet, the terms of the Commission members, as stated in the
Charter, provides for staggered terms.
· .. Based on that scenario, this, the previous Commission or the Commission members
who signed this Report before you .. .in essence, if I can summarize that--you know,
leave well enough alone, and we'll try and deal with it. .. and establish when the next
report will be due.
And...the comment from Member Johnson, I mean,
Member Anderson is that these, this Report should have been done before the budget
deliberation. Mr. Chair, the present Commission is planning to do their next report ...
· .. by March of 2007, I believe.
· .. But at the same time, they meet every month. Uh ... and I guess they're preparing
themselves to do their next report. Some of 'em won't be here in the year 2007.
· .. And that's where it stands.
CHAIR KANE: From the way it reads, technically, the members who serve for a year, could not
even participate in any meeting as well as report--is the conflict.
· .. Because it's biennial, according to the ... first section, Section 8.15-21.
MR. KUSHI: Yes, but at the same time, that one-year member could be reappointed, but shall
not serve more than four years.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Halbert, any additional comment?
MR. HALBERT: If! may offer just what our considerations were? Originally, the Commission
was attempting to figure out how to have staggered terms of one-third of the Commission
going off each year, and one-third, and two-thirds remaining so that there was more
experience on the Commission than non-experience. And then when we got digging into
the Charter Commission minutes, going back 15 years ... we came across the fact that this
Commission was originally designed as a nine-member Commission to be appointed
biennially and meet for a term of 11 months, filing a report at the end of that 11 months.
Then, in about 1998, there was another Commission, and they installed the wording for
the staggered terms, including the one-year and two-year. But those in... terms being
installed in the Commission or in the Charter overlooked the fact that the Commission
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was only a biennial commission. And so we came to the conclusion that there is some
serious revision of the Charter that needs to be done to get this Commission operating
within the scope of the Charter. And that was our conclusion--we believe.. .in other
words, I believe that. .. and, and our Report is basically saying that when we filed our
Report ... on the 31 st of March of2005 ... that according to the Charter... the Commission
had finished its job and should disband. And then in 2007, a new Commission should be
appointed and it should work for 11 months and file a report. The confusion arises over
the 1998 revisions to the Charter which overlooked the biennial status of the
Commission. And so there is quite a bit of legal maneuvering and work that needs to be
done to really have this Commission operating within the intent of those who framed the
Charter. And that means going to the electorate and so forth. That, that is my opinion.
That is the opinion of the Commission in our Report.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Members ... (end o/tape, start 2B) . .. if you'd
like. However, the Chair's intent in this one is to have this part of the Report referred
over to ...with the approval of the body, the Committee of the Whole where we do have
discussions regarding Charter amendments. And I think that's where we can have, if the
Chair of the Committee so desires, the substantive discussion of this issue to see where
we can provide any amended language to, to clean it up and try to state, restate the intent
that the public would be supportive of. So that's the intent, Members. Any questions or
comments? If not, that's what the Chair's recommendation would be.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: He's not here, so we can send it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay .. .{laughter) ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: .. .(laughter) . ..
ALL: .. . (laughter) . ..
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, without objections? We'll go ahead and move forward, but
that is the Chair's intent. When we... do the recommendation, I'll...1'11 re, recommend
that this particular item be referred to the Committee of the Whole.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay, Members, let's move on. We have, on Page 4 of 9, the issue
of concern regarding the Property Tax Department operations and billing procedures, as
well as, I think, which is tied into that, or another item similar, similarly, we'll have the
two same resource personnel, the Real Property Tax bill mailing procedures. So with us
We have
we do have... and thank you, Mr. Kushi, for joining us.
Ms. Traci Fujita Villarosa, our Deputy; we also have our Director of Finance, and
we...Mr. Kalbert Young; and we also have Mr. Lance Okumura, the Real Property Tax
Administrator with us this afternoon. Mr. Okumura, thanks for being here. Appreciate it.
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Mr. Young, any comments, and we'll talk about the ...Department operations and billing
procedures. And if you'd like to incorporate the mailing procedures, we'll go ahead and
take the two of 'em together. I think they tie in nicely with the...Division of the
Department. Mr. Young?
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Very well. I'll start first by... offering my comments on
the issue of concern related to Property Tax Department operations and billing
procedures. There's five points that I'd like to focus on, and they are, specifically, the
last five paragraphs listed on Page 4. A number of these issues have actually, there's
been substantial progress made during the interim, as well as ...that the County, this
would be a good prelude to actions that will be asked of the Council very shortly. In
regards to the first item, the homeowners and the Circuit Breaker...homeowner's
exemption and Circuit Breaker Credit.
· .. The homeowner's exemption, there's a...number of issues that the Department and
Real Property Tax Division have discussed with the Council previously. Most
specifically... as the...the Cost of Government Commission has pointed out, the ...the
duration at which the homeowner's exemption is applied, it's good, it's essentially a
lifetime exemption--that once it's applied for, it's .. .it's maintained. As well as the
ability to validate or prove that a homeowner is, has qualified or has met all the criteria
for homeowner's exemption. And the Circuit Breaker Credit, similarly... showing proof
that a homeowner is worthy or has met the minimum criteria to apply for or be qualified
for the Circuit Breaker Credit. I believe the Council has... since ... since hearing this
with the Commission, the Council has actually... expanded the ability, expanded the
application of the Circuit Breaker Credit. And this has some oper, the Department and
the Real Property Tax Division is still evaluating or assessing how it's affected, how it's
been affected operationally. The next paragraph related to positions and--compliance
officers and analyst. These are positions that, as you know, the Real Property Tax
Division has a chronic... almost near-critical problem with vacancies. These particular
positions are also part of that situation. The Department has gone through great lengths
to attempt to fill these positions, and continues to do so. And it, but it has affect, it has
affected the Department operationally. Mr. Lance Okumura can speak more to the
specifics of how it's affected his operation, if the Committee so desires.
· .. The next paragraph related to the single-family unit survey...to detect changes in
ownership. This is an issue that was rather similar to the condo survey that was
undertaken about a year-and-a-half ago.
I concur with the former Finance
Director's ...thought that recertification of the homeowner's exemption would be wise
every ten years. We're not saying that ten years has to, that it has to be every ten years,
but I believe that a lifetime home ex, homeowners exemption... credit is essentially
rather generous and would warrant prudent recertification over some period of time.
· . . The next paragraph pertaining to change in ownership information on the real
property tax bill, the real property tax bill currently asks for any change in address, not
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change in ownership. And this is primarily due--the change in ownership is a much more
formal and official. .. process. And currently, the Division, Real Property Tax Division
relies on specific formal documentation that indicates change in ownership--not simple
declaration. But this is a... an issue that is ... that the Department continues to evaluate
because it is critical to maintaining records at the Real Property Tax Division. And
lastly... again, getting back to the ... the homeowner's, as it applies to the homeowner's
exemption...the former Finance Director indicated that, you know, to in, indicated that
there should be legislation to allow comparison of excise tax records with property tax
records. And I, I would say this issue is timely in the sense that just this morning I sent
up through the Mayor's Office a request that will be coming down to Council for
consideration of an ordinance that will require or allow the Finance Director to validate
or verify information to declare whether or not a homeowner has met the criteria for
homeowner's exemption via, let's say, residency or occupancy at that particular dwelling .
. . . Mr. Chair, would you like for me to stop now or go right into the tax bill mailing
procedures issue?
CHAIR KANE: Why don't we stop there and provide Mr. Okumura--Members, without
objection--some additional comment. .. regarding the ... the issues with respects to his
Division. Do you have any additional comments, Mr. Okumura? I know your Director
mentioned that you may have some additional comments in the area noted regarding
the ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: ... (inaudible). ..
CHAIR KANE: ... uh, let's see ... the first item that you listed, I believe, Mr. Young. Is that
correct?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Chair, related to the, how the homeowner's ... changes to the Circuit
Breaker Credit. And to refresh the ... body's memory, back late 2004, the Council
actually expanded the application of the Circuit Breaker Credit to allow for-CHAIR KANE: ... {inaudible} . ..
MR. YOUNG: --credit to be applied to rental properties.
CHAIR KANE: Ah.
MR. YOUNG: And this will be the first. .. FY '06 will be the first year that that application will
be applied.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for that refresher. Mr. Okumura? If you can, please, identify
yourself, please, for the record.
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MR. OKUMURA: ... Mr. Chair, Lance Okumura, Real Property Tax Administrator.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. OKUMURA: As far as the effect of allowing... parcels with multiple dwellings to qualify
for Circuit Breaker calculations ...we are in the process of evaluating the effects and
basically it's ... so far the preliminary, preliminary indications is that it's minimal.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Any additional comments?
MR. OKUMURA: Yeah, as, as, in regards to our staffing...we are working with DPS diligently
to fill our positions. It is very technical and we have personnel in Real Property who are
performing the task. However, there are ... civil service requirements which needs to be
satisfied. And we are working with DPS to qualify these people so we can fill these
vacant positions.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, any questions on the five areas that
Mister. ..Mr. Young has touched upon ... as far as status for the issues that have brought
forward by the Commission?
· .. Hearing none, Mr. Young, why don't you go ahead and proceed with the mailing
procedures.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This particular issue ...
· .. given my tenure as Finance Director started in September of 2004, this is probably
the only issue that I've had the opportunity to work with Mr. Halbert and his
Commissioners personally on. This relates to the issue of--currently, the County.. .let's
step back. Sorry, Members. Currently, the County issues two property tax billings
twice ... one billing twice a year or two mailings, essentially. The recommendation of the
Commission is to move to a process that is similar to other municipalities where we only
mail one billing. And this would save, by our, by our estimates anywhere from 5,000 to
12,000 dollars in postage cost and processing.
· .. Since the Commission has brought, had brought this up back at, in early January,
February and we ... Mr. Okumura and I have ...have deliberated on this suggestion,
evaluating the cost savings. And we have determined that for the amount of savings, we
feel that there is a far greater benefit to the County, to the Real Property Tax Division
operations and to the taxpayers that the current two ... two notices per year is actually... a
good service for the taxpayers in that it keeps them notified ofthe--the Real Property Tax
Division currently receives a lot of calls asking for ... additional notification on how
much their bill is; request to, if they could move to, say a, something more than a
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semi-annual billing, whether they could pay quarterly, monthly even. So we feel that the
two billing method is a happy medium for the County to keep the taxpayers informed
while maintaining sound operations in the Real Property Tax Division. But we do
recognize that other municipalities across the country utilize a single...billing method.
Those municipalities, for whatever operational processes, do feel that it is sufficient for
their needs. However, operationally, I feel it is prudent for the County to maintain...two
billings per year. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions or comments? The Chair has one
suggestion since it says Mr. Okumura would take any suggestions and review and
analyze it.
· .. What about doing it quarterly and just passing on the postage charges incorporated
into the billing? And so that, you know, not an administrative charge 'cause then people
will think that we're trying to make a profit. But the actual cost of doing the additional
mailings because ... your Chair's opinion is that it is a benefit to keep them, the public
notified of what's going on with how they pay their taxes. And by doing it more
frequently and providing them with choices--whether it can be a one-time with coupons,
semi-annual ...
· .. quarterly.. .is that something that you folks looked at and still being able to make
sure that the cost that Mister... Halbert and the, and the Commission looked at as far as
the savings ...that that cost should just be passed on as a, as a cost to the, the people who
are paying their taxes? I mean, if they're gonna want it. .. semi-annually, charge them the
extra 37 cents and what it cost for the, and charge them that extra money right in their tax
assessment. Is that something that, that has been discussed within the Administration?
And, again, it's just something, Members ...throw it out there .. .(inaudible) . ..
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I, I'll respond first, and if Mr. Okumura would like to
add. Yes, we did discuss moving to more mailings than we currently do. The
Commission has urged us to reduce the number of mailings as a issue of cost savings.
We haven't, we have not discussed, as an Administration, passing on the postage cost
directly to the ...mailings per se.
· .. I, I'm open to the...to the suggestion and if we can do it. . .I would, first, consult
with Mr. Okumura to assess from the public how, how wide this demand would be. I
would not want to offer it as ... you know, people get to choose--can I get it mailed to
them quarterly or monthly, or semi ... semi-monthly... or semi-annually. So whatever
method that we ultimately decide upon, I would like for it to be consistent and applied to
all taxpayers.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And, no, fair enough. Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... You know, there's more to the cost than just the
postage. You've got the time in.. .in ...
. . . well, maybe I'm wrong. Is all this, is, it, are the bills being generated, still, from
Oahu?
. . . And then, and then when the bills, when the money comes in, are we posting
it. .. here or are they posting it there ... on Oahu?
MR. YOUNG: You wanna answer?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Okumura?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How's the accounting being done?
MR. OKUMURA: Currently, we send our data over to a contractor in City, in Honolulu. And
they print out our bills and mail it out for us. And they bill us.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... So if we increase that to quarterly, they'd be billing us
twice as much as they're billing us right now to do that.
MR. OKUMURA: Yes, it'll, it'll cost.
NOTE:

Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... And ...
. . . Mr. Okumura, you don't think it would be cost-effective to do this annually...just
once every year? Or would it be too burden, burdensome on, on the taxpayer because
we're used to paying it twice a year?
MR. OKUMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Okumura?
MR. OKUMURA: You know, in our... annual experience when we mail out our billing, we
have taxpayers complaining that they didn't receive it, they forgot about it. And we have
to deal with taxpayers asking for waiver of penalties and interest because they didn't pay
it on time. And you know, this process of an, semi-annual, we .. .I think it's sufficient.
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But there are still those that feel they should be ... notified ...more often. And if we do it
once a year, I, I anticipate increasing complaints. And you know, I, because we're the
frontline and we have to deal with it.
MR. YOUNG: ... (inaudible) . ..
MR. OKUMURA: Yeah.
MR. YOUNG: ... (inaudible) . .. twice a year.
MR. OKUMURA: Yes. But the notify, a lot of 'em will forget it or lose their coupons or
whatever. We've heard every story that you can think of.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The dog ate it?
MR. OKUMURA: Yeah, and taxes, you know-CHAIR KANE: ... (laughter) . ..
MR. OKUMURA: --so we have to find a medium. And I think this ... twice a year billing
and ... the rest of the Counties within the State are on the same ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Same schedule?
MR. OKUMURA: Yeah, right. And, and we do have what we call interim billing. This is the
billing that goes out in between those two payment periods. So .. .in actuality, we're
doing ... four mail outs. The interim billing would be for those that, who have forgotten
to payor they're in arrears, are delinquent. For example, one .. .interim billing, we were
able to collect six, 6.3 million dollars .
. . . And those are those that forgot to payor they were in delinquent or whatever.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The interim billing is only to those people who have not
yet paid?
MR. OKUMURA: Yes, those accounts with a balance for the first half payment or the second
half payment.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional questions? Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Okumura... how many people actually write a personal
check for their taxes?

- 39-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

July 12, 2005

... 'Cause how many people own their places outright and are not mortgaged or second
mortgaged? You know, I. . .I get the feeling that most people are carrying mortgages on
their homes and why aren't-MR. OKUMURA: It's about-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --they utilizing their mortgage companies to hold an escrow
account every month that put so much money in so it's a, kind of a painless thing when
their taxes come around?
MR. OKUMURA: Yes, I'd say about 40 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Own their own homes outright?
MR. OKUMURA: Well, no they still have a mortgage and all, but we do ...what we call
agency-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. OKUMURA: These are the banks and escrow companies. And every, before every billing
period, we send our data to ... to them, and they supposedly update the records.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. OKUMURA: But we've had cases where, you know, they've collected insufficient funds
and then we have to go and bill these people the balance and put a penalty and interest.
And they... they, you know, come, come and complain to us. But we're saying that you
should go take it up with your mortgage company or whatever. But, you know, it's .. .it's
a difficult process because we're taking money from people.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, it's a less painless process if you're doing it every
month rather than twice a year .
. . . I mean, that's-MR. OKUMURA: .. .{inaudible} ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --the complaint I hear, is people say, oh, god, I get this other,
like car insurance .. .I gotta make this big payment in, you know, January for my car
insurance and it's, you know, 1,300 dollars or whatever it is. But there are insurance
companies that allow you to pay.. .intermittently. And they put a surcharge on it. .. for
that, you know, for that privilege or that. .. not "privilege", for that service.
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MR. OKUMURA: It'll be real costly. Apparent, the average tax bill is about 2,400. .average.
So that's, you know, for a regular working person, it's something that-0

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's a big chunk.
MR. OKUMURA: It is.
CHAIR KANE: Two hundred dollars a month.
· .. Any additional questions, Members ...regarding the procedures for mailing ... as well
as for the operations and billing procedures? Yes, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I just had one other question. On
the. "
· .. billing procedures ... there was a question regarding a comparison of excise tax
records with property tax records. Could... could you explain the purpose of that?
· . . I, I think I missed it. Why would you wanna compare excise tax records with
property tax records?
MR. YOUNG: . . . Urn ... perhaps Mr. Halbert could explain more thoroughly, but from
my... understanding of this, or what I interpreted it to mean was that it was to provide the
Real Property Tax Division with greater means by which to verify its records, specifically
in instances like the homeowner's exemption to ensure that the homeowner was actually
entitled, that they were either (a) living on the property, (2) they actually own the
property, they still live on the property. You know, they may have applied for it 15,20
years ago, that they have not in any way sold it or brought or signed someone on to title
and was not entitled to the full exemption, et cetera, et cetera. Mr. Halbert .. .is, is that
true?
MR. HALBERT: The issue of excise tax comparisons and trans ... transient accommodation tax
comparisons to the records in the real estate tax department have to do with whether the
person is continuing to be entitled to their homeowner's exemption. If they are, in fact,
renting the property out. .. and the excise tax or transient accommodation tax records
show that . .. then their ...
· .. entitlement to the homeowner's exemption disappears. And being able to compare
those two different, two government agency... pieces of data gives the real estate tax
department more information when it comes to determining whether the homeowner is
truly entitled to that exemption. And the exemption on our homeowner's taxes--for those
of us that are residents--is a significant amount of money. And if they're renting that
property out and they're no longer living there or they're renting the property out, there's
a real question about their entitlement to their homeowner's exemption. And right now
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it's not being recertified. There, there's just a lot of things that I think we could do as a, a
County organization, the Administration to tighten the tax revenue situation with respect
to how property is managed.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's true. There's a lot of things we could do besides
compare, comparing these tax records. Urn... you know, if someone's going to cheat on
their homeowner's exemption, it's very likely .. .(laughter) . .. they're also gonna cheat
on paying excise tax if they're renting it out.
MR. HALBERT: Well taken point.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ... (laughter) . .. that's not really-MR. HALBERT: .. . (laughter). ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --a good ... you know ... comparison. Urn ...
· .. I guess I'll leave it at that. If ...
· .. this whole discussion, I think, is for another time as far as homeowner's exemptions
and .. .1, I wanna share with people that I did get a call recently from ... from somebody
who is very upset. He owns a timeshare, he's very upset with the Time Share rate that we
instituted this last, budget session. And he's also very upset with the homeowner's
exemption. And he says it's discriminatory ... (chuckle) . .. And he's written the
U. S. Attorney General's Office about it. So we may hear something about it. I think
he's also written the Mayor's Office. But. .. well, he told me he had also written the
Mayor's Office. But I'm concerned as, as you are, Mr. Halbert, with people cheating this
way. But ...
· .. I don't know, is there any, is there any... effort by the Tax Division to ... make sure
that the tax bill is sent? In other words, anyone, anyone that's getting the homeowner's
exemption, that their tax bill is actually sent to an address in this State. Is that done?
CHAIR KANE: Proceed.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson. Actually, if they get the homeowner's exemption and they
get a tax bill, it should be sent. .. first of all, it has to be sent to ...within the County of
Maui. And it needs to be a, an actual residence. The issue--I think what we've
experienced is that there are occasions where it is sent to the ...to, to the building location
that's on record, it's in Maui County, it's ...you know, and there is a purported
owner/occupant there. But in reality, it's actually being rented out. And, and I think
that's what Mr. Halbert is making reference to. This issue with the ex, gen, comparing to
the excise tax records--because the excise tax is maintained by State Tax ... Department
of... a State agency... our County agency, Real Property Tax Division has had
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difficulties getting access to this type of records. The State Legislature recently passed
legislation that would have enabled us to share in, for the State to share information with
the County. But I understand as of today, the Governor has vetoed that legislation. So
there have been efforts on the part of the ...the Finance Departments throughout the State
to try and get access to the State records ... specifically for this purpose. And thus far, we
haven't been able to. So ... short of that, there's, you know, we're looking for other
avenues to verify this type of information--specifically, to get to this problem that
Mr. Halbert and his Commissioners have identified.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, Mr. Halbert has additional comments.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Halbert?
MR. HALBERT: Thank you. I would like to take this opportunity to say that the real estate tax
department should be commended. .. for a fantastic effort in resolving the condominium
residency situation. They, they...put a lot of time and effort into confirming people's
entitlement. And they also generated some revenue for the County. And they really did
a lot of hard work on that. And the Commission was extremely pleased with their efforts.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, continue.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I'm through. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional comment sin this area, Members? Final comments?
. . . Hearing none, thank you very much to the Director and to the Administrator.
Mr. Okumura, thank you very much.
MR. OKUMURA: ... {inaudible} . ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, we're gonna move on. We have, I believe, two items left. The first
issue is located on Page 6. It's the solicitation of public input to the Cost of Govemment
Commission. I don't see a resource person from the Mayor's Office here. I know
Mr. DeLeon was sitting in the audience earlier. And...we'll go ahead and see if Staff
can go ahead and contact. .. upstairs and see if he'd like to come down and make
some ... comment. But in this case, Mr. Halbert, if you could please provide us with
some comment?
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MR. HALBERT: IfI may comment on that? We spent quite a bit of time on it. We got a lot of
help from the Mayor's Office--getting an article put together and into The Maui News.
And quite frankly, as the Chairman of the Commission and my fellow Commissioners,
we walked away from that situation very disappointed. The silence from the community
was deafening. We got little or nothing in the way of responses, except on one issue
which we've chosen to refer to a different committee. But the silence was deafening.
We tried very hard and we did get a lot of help from the Mayor's Office on that issue.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any comments, Members? Questions, comments?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
Thank you.
Mr. Halbert, not only your
Commission...had very little response. You know, we've been having Water Use
Development Plan meetings ... here in Central Maui as well as Upcountry. Understand
Up country is well attended, but when it comes to Central Maui, it's a different story.
Very few public people come out and support the commission.
MR. HALBERT: It makes the job very difficult.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah. It does.
CHAIR KANE: Additional questions or comments? Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think that's indicative of the fact that our residents have
to spend so much time working in order to live here. They don't have time for
community service. And thank god we have retirees who can ... step to the plate.
CHAIR KANE: . . . As long as everybody's views are taken into consideration, yeah?
... (laughter). .. People-MR. HALBERT: Oh, when we-CHAIR KANE: --working gotta be represented, too. Mr. Halbert? ... (end ojtape, start 3A) . ..
MR. HALBERT: ... solicited input. We said that in could, input could come in any way, shape,
or form--by letter, by phone call, bye-mail. .. or public testimony. We would accept
whatever we were given. And we didn't even require that the person identify themselves.
And it still met with silence.
CHAIR KANE: Hmmm. Any additional comments here, Members? Questions?
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... Hearing none, Staff, any... contact made?
MR. TAGUCHI: Someone's supposed to be coming.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, I'll put this to end of calendar. We have one final item. And,
Ms. Inamasu, are you here for the final item that we have? Why don't you come forward,
please? We have Joanne Inamasu here from the Economic Development. ..part of the
Mayor's Office. We have the item of concern: the Maui Visitors Bureau funding in the
County's Fiscal Year '05 Budget. Mr. Halbert, you wanna provide any, just opening
remarks in this area? I know you said earlier you're only here to respond, but any, any
comments at all before we move into this?
MR. HALBERT: I guess I need to make sure it's understood here that we looked at the Maui
Visitors Bureau budgeting process. We received a great deal of input from the
representatives of the office. And we essentially signed off on that issue entirely. We
felt that things were being handled in a proper and efficient manner.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Inamasu, comments, opening remarks? And if you can, please
identify yourself for the record.
MS. INAMASU: Thank you. I'm Joanne Inamasu with the Office of Economic Development,
sitting in place of our Coordinator who unfortunately cannot be here, but for good
reason--she's actually on Oahu tending to her newborn child. Terryl Vencl also sends her
regrets. She's actually on Molokai today, ifnot she would have been here as well. I was
not part of the process with the Commission going through... and looking through the
Maui Visitors Bureau, their grant. That is the largest grant that we administer through
our Office on behalf of the County. But we also have a good partnership with them, we
also know that they are very diligent in their works and their recordkeepings. And we do
keep on top of them as well. So ...we appreciate the Commission going through and
validating those efforts as well. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any questions for Mr. Halbert or Ms. Inamasu on their... on the
Report that was given to us?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none .. .I'm sorry, Mister...Taguchi, we did have representation
being sent down?
... Good afternoon.
MS. WAKAMATSU, FROM THE AUDIENCE: Good afternoon.
CHAIR KANE: ... Ms. Inamasu, sounds like ...
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MS. INAMASU: .. .{laughter} . ..
CHAIR KANE: ... you're done.
MS. INAMASU: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
NOTE:

Pause while Ms. Wakamatsu approached the floor.

CHAIR KANE: ... Members, we'll, we'll allow Staff to provide a moment of...to ...to
inform ...
. . . the personnel from Administration on the item, the previous item. And we'll just ask
if--Ms. Wakamatsu, we were discussing the public input or solicitation of public input to
the Cost of Government Commission, and we did ...we did receive ... some unfortunate
news that the pUblic ... seems to be uninterested in, in providing input. So if you have
any additional comments from the Office of the Mayor, we'd appreciate that input onto
the record.
MS. WAKAMATSU: ... I understand from speaking to former Chair Halbert that his comment
to the Committee was that we had not received any input based on the publication of the
press release that we did publish. Is that correct?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
MS. WAKAMATSU:
statement?

And you are asking if I have any further comments to add to that

CHAIR KANE: Yes, from, from Administration's standpoint and the efforts that were made by
the Senior Executive Assistance to the Mayor... with respects...to the efforts to solicit
public input. You folks have any additional comment? If you don't, that's okay, too.
But if you do-MS. WAKAMATSU: No, actually, Mr. Chair, I would not have any additional comment to that
statement.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, any final questions or comments in this area?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, Members, we've completed the review of the Commission's
Report. There are a few areas, Members, that the Chair would ask for your consideration.
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First, with respects to the issue of the Maui County Charter, Chapter 15. Without
objections, the Chair would ask that this, that you would allow the Chair to go ahead and
do a doc. trans. over to the Committee of the Whole to provide them an opportunity
to .. .look at further review of this item. And, again, this is where ... there, there lie some
inconsistencies within the Charter itself on the function of the Cost of Government
Commission. Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, thank you. The other item that. .. that seemed to have some
extended, extensive discussion was the issue of concern relating to small tools and
portable equipment accountability policies. As noted, this item is not, is not new. It's an
old one, and it's .. .it continues to have a lot of discussion on it. By referring this item to
the Parks and Economic Development Committee or. .. and that would be one area. I
mean, only because it was represented that. . .the Managing Director's Office is gonna
take a priority approach in looking at large items. And they have basically deferred on
looking at the small items, and that they've looked at the Parks Department as perhaps
providing some level of... modeling, if you will, for a policy because they seem to be the
most aggressive ... or progressive, excuse me, Department that's looking at some level of
policy creation. Only, so because of that, the Chair only thought that it may be
considered to send this particular item over to the Parks and Economic Development
Committee to provide further discussion and perhaps provide them that opportunity,
anyway. Is there any .. .is there any comment there? As, again, only as suggestion for
consideration. If it's not, then we can go ahead and... as with the rest of the items, the
Chair was gonna ask your consideration for filing ... 0fBF-l1.
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Members, the Chair will entertain a motion at this time to file BF-l1.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR KANE: It's been moved and seconded by Members Tavares and Mateo. We are in
discussion. Discussion, Members?
NOTE:

Silence.

CHAIR KANE: ... Hearing none, all in favor say "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR KANE:
Opposed?
Let the record show it's unammous with Members
present--Anderson, Mateo, Pontanilla, Tavares, Kane.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Mateo, Pontanilla, Tavares, and
Chair Kane.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers
Carroll,
Vice-Chair Hokama.

Johnson,

Molina,

and

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending FILING of communication.

CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members, we've completed our work-MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane?
CHAIR KANE: --for the-MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Kane?
CHAIR KANE: --agenda for this afternoon. Mr. Taguchi?
MR. TAGUCHI: Will you be filing the communication?
CHAIR KANE: Pardon me?
MR. TAGUCHI: Will you be filing the communication?
CHAIR KANE:
Yes, and incorporated into that was the filing
Communication 05-178. Any objections to that incorporation, Members-COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR KANE: --on the vote taken? Thank you. Thank you very much. Okay, Members,
hearing no further ... discussion or items on the agenda for this afternoon, this meeting for
July 12th, 2005 is adjourned. Good afternoon, Members .. .(gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

4:01 p.m.

Transcribed by: Camille Sakamoto
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